

---

## Clearing Conditions for Eurex Clearing AG

---

\*\*\*\*\*

CHANGES ARE MARKED AS FOLLOWS:

AMENDMENTS ARE UNDERLINED

DELETIONS ARE CROSSED OUT

\*\*\*\*\*

[...]

## Chapter VI Transactions Concluded at the Irish Stock Exchange (ISE Dublin)

### Part 1 General Provisions

[...]

#### 1.1.4 Conclusion of Transactions

- (1) At the Irish Stock Exchange, the only parties to ISE transactions are Eurex Clearing AG and a Clearing Member. Eurex Clearing AG makes an open offer to Clearing Members and shall enter into a central counterparty contract when two orders in securities subject to Clearing under this Chapter VI are matched electronically on the ISE trading system. Such matching constitutes the acceptance of the open offer by each of the trading participants at the Irish Stock Exchange which have entered the orders that have been matched and a central counterparty contract shall immediately arise between Eurex Clearing AG and the Clearing Member in question. Where an order ~~in Irish securities~~ which has been matched electronically on the ISE trading system has been entered by a Non-Clearing Member, the open offer shall be accepted by that Non-Clearing Member as agent for the General Clearing Member which provides clearing services for that Non-Clearing Member. The General Clearing Member shall be bound by the terms of such a transaction, irrespective of anything contained in any agreement or arrangement between the General Clearing Member and the Non-Clearing Member. All transactions for the sale and purchase of ~~Irish~~ securities between Eurex Clearing AG and Clearing Members and all matters concerning the formation and validity of such transactions shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the law of the Republic of Ireland.

It shall be a term of every central counterparty contract between Eurex Clearing AG and a Clearing Member that the obligation of each of Eurex Clearing AG and the Clearing Member as between themselves to deliver securities or pay cash in respect of that, where the Clearing Member has elected to settle a transaction on a net

---

**Clearing Conditions for Eurex Clearing AG**

---

basis, transaction shall be discharged by and upon the delivery of the net amount of ~~Irish~~ securities of the same description as the securities to which that transaction relates and/or the payment of the net amount of cash for securities of that description calculated, in accordance with the netting procedures provided by CREST, as payable and/or deliverable on the settlement date of the relevant transactions between Eurex Clearing AG and the Clearing Member.

[...]

**Part 2****Clearing of transactions concluded at the Irish Stock Exchange (ISE)****2.1 Sub-Part  
Settlement of ISE transactions****2.1.1 General Provisions**

- (1) Eurex Clearing AG shall be a contracting party for all deliveries and payments at the performance of ISE transactions.
- (2) Clearing Members must fulfil their delivery and payment obligations in accordance with the instructions of Eurex Clearing AG.
- (3) The following shall apply to the procedures for delivery and payment pursuant to Paragraph 1:

All physical deliveries and payments shall be concurrently performed between the Clearing Members and Eurex Clearing AG and, accordingly, between Eurex Clearing AG and the Clearing Members which are to receive delivery, on the settlement day (delivery versus payment). Physical deliveries of securities are to be made through the securities account at CREST of Eurex Clearing AG, and the payment is to occur via the respective cash settlement account.

- (4) Transfer of ownership regarding the securities to be delivered by the Clearing Members to Eurex Clearing AG and vice versa, shall be effected in accordance with the laws of the Republic of Ireland and the requirements of CREST. According to the laws of the Republic of Ireland, the transfer of ownership regarding securities becomes effective upon entry or transfer of title in the respective share register after the respective request ("Register Update Request") as prescribed by the CREST manual has been submitted. Upon such request, the purchaser initially acquires a right in rem for transfer of ownership vis-à-vis the seller in the appropriate number of the relevant ~~Irish~~ securities on which the respective ISE transaction is based. The purchaser's right in rem for transfer of ownership ceases to exist upon registration in the share register by the respective issuer of such ~~Irish~~ securities or by its registrar, and the purchase obtains title in such securities by way of such registration. The issuer may, in specific circumstances according to the laws of the Republic of

---

## Clearing Conditions for Eurex Clearing AG

---

Ireland, refuse to register a transfer of title in the respective share register; in such cases, the rules of CREST relating to bad deliveries defined in the CREST manual shall apply.

[...]

### 2.1.5 Delay

(1) If the Clearing Member obligated to deliver is in default in assignment of the owed securities or part thereof Eurex Clearing AG shall have the rights pursuant to Paragraph 1 to 7:

- a) Eurex Clearing AG shall be authorized ~~for Irish securities~~, for account of the Clearing Member, to carry out a replacement purchase with securities of the same class on the 15th, 18th, 20th and ~~3837~~th business day after the default and in further periods of respectively ten business days. ~~Eurex Clearing AG is authorized to make a replacement purchase for British securities with securities of the same nature at the expense of the Clearing Member on the 15th, 18th and 20th business day.~~

The replacement purchase shall be carried out by means of an auction whose place and implementation may be determined by Eurex Clearing AG under consideration of the interests of the Clearing Member.

For each auction, Eurex Clearing AG shall publish a maximum price for each class of securities, which shall constitute the ceiling for bids. The maximum price for such auction shall be the settlement price determined by Eurex Clearing AG for the corresponding class of securities plus an additional charge of 100% of such settlement price.

Any company ("Vendor") who has concluded a contract with Eurex Clearing AG beforehand may take part in the auctions.

[...]